
Board of County Commissioners 
Agenda Request 

Date of Meeting: May 7, 2024 

Date Submitted: April 10, 2024 

To: Honorable Chairman and Members of the Board 

From: Edward J. Dixon, County Administrator 

Subject: Board Direction Regarding Reimbursement for Delinquency Fees 
from Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement 

Statement of Issue: 

This agenda item seeks Board direction regarding reimbursement for delinquency fees 
from the Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement.  

Background: 

Every month HR and the Clerk's office receive a report from FRS that shows any past 
due balance.  We received this bill out of the blue last fall.  This bill is for employment 
Commissioner Hinson resigned in approximately 2018 and Commissioner Holt in 
approximately 2011.  Randomly, we receive a bill for Commissioner Holt's retirement 
contributions from 12 years ago.  Mrs. Maas spoke with Samantha Harrison with FRS 
who does not have the authority to solve this problem for us but has been a good resource 
for explaining their existing processes.  Both Commissioner Hinson and Commissioner 
Holt worked for the School Board and GCBOCC.  The requirement is that "someone" 
notify FRS when they are no longer dually employed.  Important to note here that FRS is 
not notified by the fact that they are no longer receiving payroll contributions for 
someone, but they say they do not track it that way.   

We are required to pay payroll taxes and make FRS contributions; however, this situation 
is not so clear-cut as per the Clerk’s email dated February 3, 2024.  Ms. Maas, the 
previous HR director, had numerous meetings and discussions with County Attorney 
Knowles and FRS to get some direction on the next steps for resolving this matter.  Mr. 
Knowles indicated to Ms. Maas in conversation that he could talk to our lobbyist, Brian 
Ballard, and talk with someone higher at FRS (possibly someone in the General 
Counsel's office to work with us).  He provided some older case law showing another 
county that had a DOAH ruling where the city was required to make the payments, but 
they were allowed to make the payments over time.  That case is not identical to ours.  
The issue concerns the reasonable expectation of being able to comply with FRS's 
requirements.   
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The legal concerns here are: 

• How can you charge us late fees for many years for fees you have been accruing 
but never made us aware of until months ago?   

• How can you assign responsibility for this debt to GCBOCC and exclude the 
School Board when we are not the employer that had the employment change for 
the employee?   

• The money they are billing us for Commissioner Holt is not to reimburse her 
retirement account.  She was not eligible for these contributions towards her 
retirement because she was already retired.  This is FRS's accounting system still 
accruing the money and them wanting to be paid to straighten out the accounting 
side. 

Analysis: 

On September 21, 2023, Mrs. Maas emailed the Clerk’s Office (attached) and directed 
them not to pay the fee because HR was working on this with the Attorney.  The Clerk’s 
office paid anyway.  The Clerk's office made a significant error in paying this debt for 
many reasons.   

• The BOCC did not approve this payment of over $160,000.   
• The ability to negotiate this situation has been taken away.  Now we have no 

leverage because payment has been made.   
• Finance’s argument that they paid it to keep the late fees from accruing is 

ineffective because the late fees continue to accrue.   

Fiscal Impact:   

$165.131.75 which has already been paid by the Finance Department.  $82,263.43 is the 
balance due.  

Options: 
 
1.  Board direction.  
 
County Administrator’s Recommendation: 
 
Option 1. 
 
Attachments:   
 

• Letter From the Department of Management Services 
• Emails 
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From: bmaas1170@aol.com <bmaas1170@aol.com>  

Sent: Tuesday, February 6, 2024 11:14 AM 

To: Laurel Bradley <lbradley@gadsdencountyfl.gov> 

Subject: Re: Mandatory FRS Employer Contributions 

  

Hi Laurel, 

  

Certainly we are required to pay payroll taxes and make FRS contributions however, this situation is not 

so cut and dry as suggested below.  I have had numerous meetings and discussions with Clayton  and FRS 

to get some direction on next steps for resolving this matter.  The last time we spoke Clayton indicated 

he could talk to our lobbyist, Brian Ballard and talk with someone higher at FRS (possibly someone in the 

General Counsel's office to work with us).  He has provided some older case law showing another county 

that had a DOAH ruling where the city was required to make the payments but they were alllowed to 

make the payments over time.  That case is not identical to ours.  There are many issues with ours that 

are concerning in terms of a reasonable expectation of being able to comply with FRS's requirements.   

  

Every month both myself and the Clerk's office (Debbie Meeks, i believe) receives a report from FRS that 

shows any past due balance.  We received this bill out of the blue last fall.  I don't have the exact date 

the bill was received but could research and provide if needed.  This bill is for a job Hinson resigned from 

in approx 2018 and Holt in approx 2011 (again i am guessing at dates b/c i don't have my computer with 

me).  So randomly, we receive a bill for Holt's retirement contributions from 12 years ago!  I have spoken 

with Samantha Harrison with FRS who does not have the authority to solve this problem for us but has 

been a good resource for explaining their existing processes.  Both Hinson and Holt worked for the 

School Board and GCBOCC.  The requirement is that "someone" notify FRS when they are no longer 

dually employed.  Important to note here that FRS is not notified by the fact that they are no longer 

receiving payroll contributions for someone but they say they do not track it that way.  So they left the 

School Board and it appears the School Board did not notify FRS that they left and the individuals did not 

notify us or FRS that they were no longer dually employed.   

  

The legal concerns here are: 

  

1)  How can you charge us late fees for many years for fees you have been accruing but never made us 

aware of until months ago?   

2)  How can you assign responsibility of this debt to GCBOCC and exclude the School Board when we are 

not the employer that had the employment change for the employee?   

3) The money they are billing us for Commissioner Holt is not to reimburse her retirement account.  She 

was not eligible to these contributions towards her retirement b/c she was already retired.  This is FRS's 
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accounting system still accruing the money and them wanting to be paid to straighten out the accounting 

side. 

  

On September 21, my email (included below) directed them not to pay the fee b/c we working on this 

with the Attorney.  They paid it anyway.  The Clerk's office made a significant error in paying this debt for 

many reasons.  They are: 

  

1) The BOCC did not approve this payment of over $160,000.   

2) They took away our ability to negotiate this situation.  Now we have no leverage b/c they have already 

been paid the money.   

3) Their argument that they paid it to keep the late fees from accruing is ineffective b/c the late fees 

continue to accrue.  Again, this is how there accounting system works.   

  

  

Let me know if you need additional information or copies of emails and i can get you those.   

  

Becky  

  

  

  

On Tuesday, February 6, 2024 at 10:39:21 AM EST, Laurel Bradley <lbradley@gadsdencountyfl.gov> 

wrote:  

  

  

  rom: nthomas@gadsdenclerk.com <nthomas@gadsdenclerk.com> 

Sent: Saturday, February 3, 2024 11:35 AM 

To: Ron Green <rgreen@gadsdencountyfl.gov>; Alonzetta Simpkins <Asimpkins@gadsdencountyfl.gov>; 

Eric Hinson <ehinson@gadsdencountyfl.gov>; Brenda Holt <bholt@gadsdencountyfl.gov>; Kimblin 

NeSmith <knesmith@gadsdencountyfl.gov> 

Cc: Clayton Knowles <cknowles@gadsdencountyfl.gov>; Ed Dixon <edixon@gadsdencountyfl.gov>; 

Georgette Daniels <gdaniels@gadsdencountyfl.gov>; 'Trudei Porter' <trudeip@gadsdenclerk.com>; 

rharris@gadsdenclerk.com; dmeeks@gadsdenclerk.com; 'Marcella Blocker' 

<mblocker@gadsdenclerk.com>; Laurel Bradley <lbradley@gadsdencountyfl.gov> 

Subject: Mandatory FRS Employer Contributions 

10 of 11

mailto:lbradley@gadsdencountyfl.gov
mailto:nthomas@gadsdenclerk.com
mailto:nthomas@gadsdenclerk.com
mailto:rgreen@gadsdencountyfl.gov
mailto:Asimpkins@gadsdencountyfl.gov
mailto:ehinson@gadsdencountyfl.gov
mailto:bholt@gadsdencountyfl.gov
mailto:knesmith@gadsdencountyfl.gov
mailto:cknowles@gadsdencountyfl.gov
mailto:edixon@gadsdencountyfl.gov
mailto:gdaniels@gadsdencountyfl.gov
mailto:trudeip@gadsdenclerk.com
mailto:rharris@gadsdenclerk.com
mailto:dmeeks@gadsdenclerk.com
mailto:mblocker@gadsdenclerk.com
mailto:lbradley@gadsdencountyfl.gov


  

Commissioners, 

  

There are federal labor laws to punish employers who fail to make mandatory contributions on behalf of 

their employees.  There are employee contributions and there are employer contributions. At the federal 

level, for example,  payroll taxes (fica) are mandatory and must be paid.   

  

At the state level, the Florida Legislature sets the FRS rates every year and the Department of 

Management Services enforces the collection.  It is a privilege for Gadsden County to be granted 

participation in the FRS.  We are required to pay the mandatory rates to retain that privilege. 

  

We have paid the mandatory employer contributions for Commissioner’s Hinson and Holt based on DMS 

10 year Audit of their dual enrollment status.  We need the BOCC to authorize the payment of penalties 

and interest.  We had requested that your staff seek a waiver of the penalties and interest but no one 

ever responded (see email chain). 

  

Nicholas Thomas,  Clerk   
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